Public Document Pack
Please Contact

Owen Griffiths
43313

Extension

E Mail

owen.griffiths@ryedale.gov.uk

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Thursday 10 February 2022 at 6.30 pm
Council Chamber - Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire YO17 7HH

Agenda
1

Apologies for absence

2

Minutes of the meeting held on 20 January 2022

3

Urgent Business

(Pages 3 - 6)

To receive notice of any urgent business which the Chairman considers should be
dealt with at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of
the Local Government Act 1972.

4

Declarations of Interest
Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the Code of
Conduct.
Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or Council
are required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest. This requirement is
not discharged by merely declaring a personal interest without further explanation.

5

Scrutiny Review on Staff Appraisals

6

Customer Complaints and Compliments Q3 2021-22

(Pages 17 - 34)

7

Timetable of Meetings

(Pages 35 - 38)

8

Decisions from other Committees

(Pages 7 - 16)

Policy and Resources Committee held on 3 February 2022

9

O&S Forward Plan

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH
Tel: 01653 600666
www.ryedale.gov.uk

(Pages 39 - 40)

10

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.

Agenda Item 2
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Held at Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton
on Thursday 20 January 2022
Present
Councillors Garbutt Moore, King, Middleton (Chair), Oxley, Raper and Riby
In Attendance
Cllrs Raine and Wass (Via MS Teams)
Rachael Balmer, Alan Bardet, Lynne Bayes, Simon Copley, Jonathan Dodsworth, Anton
Hodge, Gareth Mills, Connor Munroe and Thilina De Zoysa and Margaret Wallace.

Minutes
65

Apologies for absence
Apologies were received from Cllr Bailey.
Cllrs Raine and Wass attended the meeting virtually and therefore were
unable to propose or vote on any items.

66

Minutes of the meeting held on 16 December 2021
Decision
That the minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Meeting held on 16
December 2021 be approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record.
Voting Record
Unanimous

67

Urgent Business

There was no urgent business.

68

Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

PART 'A' ITEMS - MATTERS TO BE DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED
POWERS OR MATTERS DETERMINED BY COMMITTEE
69

Delivering the Council Plan - Key Performance Indicators for O&S
Review

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

1

Page 3

Thursday 20 January 2022

Decision
That the progress report, including actions to improve performance, is noted.
Voting Record
Unanimous
Cllr Riby joined the meeting during this item.
70

Second Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Progress Reports 2021/22
Decision
That the Committee note the work undertaken by internal audit and the
counter fraud team in the year to date.
Voting Record
Unanimous

71

Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 - Consultation
Recommendation
Members are asked to identify any specific risk areas which they believe
should be considered a priority for audit in 2022/23.


People aspect to be considered

Guidance from officers to be sought on other specific priorities.
72

Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Investment Strategy 202223
Decision
That Members receive the report of the Chief Finance Officer and Council is
recommended to approve:
(ii)

The Operational Borrowing Limit for 2022/23 is set at £7m;

(ii)

The Authorised Borrowing Limit for 2022/23 is set at £12.5m;

(iii)
Councillors delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer to effect
movement within the agreed authorised boundary limits for long-term
borrowing for 2022/23 onwards.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

2

Page 4

Thursday 20 January 2022

(iv)

The treasury management strategy statement 2022/23 be approved.

(v)
The minimum revenue provision policy statement for 2022/23 be
approved.
(vi)
The treasury management investment strategy for 2022/23 be
approved.
(vii) The prudential indicators for 2022/23 which reflect the capital
expenditure plans which are affordable, prudent and sustainable be approved.
(viii)

The Capital Strategy for 2022/23 be approved

Voting Record
Unanimous
73

Update on the use of RIPA
Decision
That Members note that no application for covert surveillance has been made
to the Council’s approved “Authorising Officers” in the last twelve months and
as a consequence no application to the Magistrates Court requesting approval
of any such grant has been made.
Voting Record
Unanimous
PART 'B' ITEMS - MATTERS REFERRED TO COUNCIL

74

Model Code of Conduct
Decision
It is recommended to Council that the Local Government Association (LGA)
Model Code of Conduct for Councillors be adopted as Ryedale District
Council’s Code of Conduct for Councillors, subject to minor amendments to
replace gender-specific language (e.g. ‘him/her’) with gender neutral language
(e.g. ‘their’) and to add socio-economic group to the list of characteristics to be
protected in the ‘Equalities’ section.
Voting Record
Unanimous

75

Appointment of External Auditors

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

3

Page 5

Thursday 20 January 2022

Decision
That Audit Committee recommends that Council accepts Public Sector Audit
Appointments’ invitation to opt into the sector-led option for the appointment of
external auditors to principal local government and police bodies for five
financial years from 1 April 2023.
Voting Record
Unanimous
76

O&S Forward Plan
The Committee received the Forward Plan.
The following changes to the Forward Plan were noted by Members

77



The Scrutiny Review on Staff Appraisals will be coming to the 10 February
meeting.



The Safer Ryedale and Ryedale Community Safety Partnership Action Plan
report scheduled for March has slipped to April to give extra time to consult on
the action plan with partners.

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.
Members discussed the adjournment of Planning Committee on Monday 17
January. No further action to be taken at this time. No Planning decisions were
adversely affected by this adjournment.
Members thanked Simon Copley, who is leaving RDC for his service and
wished him luck in the future.
There being no other business, the meeting closed at 7:55pm.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

4

Page 6

Thursday 20 January 2022

Agenda Item 5

PART A:

MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

10 FEBRUARY 2022

REPORT OF THE:

PROGRAMME DIRECTOR FOR PLACE AND RESOURCES
PHILLIP SPURR

TITLE OF REPORT:

SCRUTINY REVIEW ON STAFF APPRAISALS

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To present the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Task Group report and the
recommendations from the scrutiny review on staff appraisals

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that
(i)
The scrutiny review report at Appendix 1 and the recommendations from the
task group be approved.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To improve the appraisal process and procedures to help support all staff in identifying
and meeting their development needs to improve performance.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The task group wanted reassurance that the appraisal process was running effectively
to ensure all staff are supported through the Local Government Reorganisation
process.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The staff appraisal process forms part of the Our Organisation strand of the Council
Plan 2020-2024, to make Ryedale DC a great place to work. In particular, empowering
staff to deliver ambitiously, promoting health & wellbeing support and ensuring that
training and development opportunities are available for all employees.

5.2

In carrying out the review, the task group considered the appraisal guidance for
managers and staff to look at the roles and responsibilities of the stakeholders

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 7

10 FEBRUARY 2022

involved. The task group also conducted a questionnaire to consult with a random
sample of 25 Ryedale District Council staff in gathering evidence for the review. The
full results of the staff sample questionnaire were presented to the task group at the
meeting held on 9 December 2021.
REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

The Terms of Reference set out in the Council Constitution for the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee details the function of “reviewing and scrutinising the performance
of the Council in relation to its policy objectives, performance targets and/or particular
service areas.”

6.2

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee agreed on the scrutiny review topics to be
considered at its meeting held on the 28 July 2021, with the membership of the task
group for staff appraisals agreed at the meeting held on 30 September 2021.

6.3

A scoping report (set out at Annex A) was agreed by the committee on 30 September
2021, setting out the key question for the review as:
How is the appraisal process contributing to effective performance across the
organisation and can it be refined?

6.4

The scrutiny review task group has made seven recommendations, focusing on the
process and procedures to be adopted for the annual staff appraisal process for
2022/23. These include:


Reaffirm the importance of staff appraisals as a key tool for Ryedale District Council
to ensure all employees get the maximum possible benefit from their staff
development discussions, particularly during the Local Government Reorganisation
process.



That the set period in the year to undertake appraisals should be continued in future
years to make it part of the routine for staff and managers to complete these as part
of a corporate calendar.



Officers should consider giving a longer period for the annual appraisals to occur, to
give enough time for both managers and staff to effectively plan, undertake and write
up the notes from the appraisal meeting.



Mid-year reviews and catch ups should be encouraged for managers to undertake
with staff in March and April to continue the cycle of performance and objective
evaluation and to help ensure that service priorities continue to be met with Local
Government Reorganisation.



The escalation process for any issues raised through appraisals should be promoted
as part of next set of mid-year/annual appraisals through the staff intranet website
and employee communications, to ensure greater awareness and understanding of
the options available.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 8

10 FEBRUARY 2022



An overall percentage of staff appraisal completions be included as a key
performance indicator (KPI) in the Ryedale District Council Annual Report to Elected
Members to allow continued tracking.



Appraisals for Elected Members on a similar basis to the staff process should be
considered by officers as part of the implementation of the member development
arrangements for the new unitary authority.

6.5

The full report on the review undertaken into staff appraisals can be found at Appendix
1. This includes a summary of the meetings held and discussion points, along with
details of the engagement with staff to come up with the recommendations in the
report.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
No implications have been identified.
b)

Legal
No implications have been identified.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
Staffing - The recommendations of the scrutiny review put forward by the task
group aim to improve the staff appraisal process and procedures.
Equalities - The appraisal process is for all Ryedale District Council staff, rather
than specific groups, although it is critical that it is applied fairly to all groups.

Phillip Spurr
Programme Director for Place and Resources
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Will Baines, Senior Corporate Governance Officer
01653 600666 ext: 43228
will.baines@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
None
Background Papers are available for inspection at:
N/A

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 9

10 FEBRUARY 2022

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 1

Scrutiny Review
Staff Appraisals

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

January 2022

Page 11

1. Introduction
This report sets out the findings of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee task group following the
scrutiny review into staff appraisals.
The task group wishes to thank all those who gave their time in contributing to the review, in
particular the random sample of 25 Ryedale District Council staff who responded to a survey
seeking their views on the staff appraisal process.

2. Scope of the review
In the scoping report noted by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 30 September 2021, the
following key question was set out as:


How is the appraisal process contributing to effective performance across the organisation
and can it be refined?

The key points that the review would like to cover:







What is the strategic impact of appraisals, in terms of supporting the delivery of the Council’s
priorities and performance management?
What appraisal system is in operation?
Is it appropriate and proportionate to the organisation and its current context?
What evidence is there that appraisals are having a positive impact on performance?
What developments may be required to ensure that staff have clear guidance on priorities
and that performance is measured and addressed if necessary?
What other forms of staff liaison with team leaders and managers is taking place across the
council outside of the formal appraisal process e.g. team meetings, 1-2-1s, wellbeing
groups?

3. Membership of the Committee
The Task Group formed to undertake the review consisted of Councillors Bailey, King, Oxley,
Riby and Raine.
Officers involved:
Emma Lawer (Senior HR Business Partner)
Marie Lomax (HR/OD Project Officer)
Simon Copley (Head of Corporate Governance)
Task Group supporting officers:
Will Baines (Senior Corporate Governance Officer)

4. Methodology
The Task Group held the following meetings in conducting the scrutiny review:
19 October 2021 - Task Group first meeting
9 December 2021 - Final Task Group meeting

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Page 12

January 2022

In order to gather the information required to formulate recommendations from the scrutiny review,
the task group devised a survey on the staff appraisal process for a random sample of 25 Ryedale
District Council staff to complete. The survey was provided to the sample and available to complete
from 3 to 19 November 2021. The form was available to complete either digitally and manually.
The full results of the staff sample survey were presented to the task group at the meeting held on
9 December 2021.

5. Findings
Members of the Scrutiny Review Task Group were clear at the start of the review that they were
seeking reassurance that an appraisal process is in place for all Ryedale District Council staff to
engage with and feel a part of, that they are taking place across the organisation and that the
outcomes of the appraisals are followed up and addressed as required. The wellbeing of staff is a
key concern for Elected Members over the next period with the Local Government
Reorganisation process ongoing in North Yorkshire to form a unitary authority, and that is why the
topic was put forward for consideration by the task group.
Staff performance management at Ryedale District Council is monitored through a formal annual
appraisal. This is a chance for both the manager and staff member concerned to reflect on the
successes and achievements of the previous year and to look ahead to future challenges and
potential support and assistance that may be required. This annual appraisal is part of the
ongoing conversations between staff members and managers that also includes regular team
and directorate meetings, 1-2-1s and ongoing conversations to reflect and discuss issues further.
Annual staff appraisals took place across all Ryedale District Council service areas in August and
September 2021, with progress on the percentage of completed appraisals monitored during this
period on a weekly basis by Strategic Management Board. The percentage of completed annual
appraisals for staff members for 2021/22 is 100%, a big improvement on previous years. To
assist managers, the process for undertaking staff appraisals was refreshed and streamlined to
support them in completing these within the time period set with their direct reports and a ‘Skills
Booster’ online video training on appraisals was promoted to all managers in August 2021. Given
the continued challenges posed by the Covid-19 pandemic this year, appraisals took place either
in person or via video conferencing software as agreed between the manager and staff member
concerned.
In exploring this topic, members of the task group noted the various mechanisms currently in
place across the organisation for staff and managers to discuss performance issues on an
informal and formal basis. The fact that the majority of the random staff sample of 25 (82.61%)
found the formal appraisal process a positive one was encouraging. The task group were also
pleased to see that nearly three quarters of the staff sampled (73.91%) felt that the appraisal took
place as part of regular 1-2-1s, but were keen that the staff members responding where this did
not take place were still given the opportunity to feed back regularly to managers on a consistent
basis.
The structure to the formal appraisal process was felt to be fit for purpose and appropriate for the
size of the organisation, with the forms and guidance on the staff intranet website on objective
setting and training needs providing a clear and helpful format for encouraging a two-way
conversation. This was shown in the 100% agreement from the staff sample surveyed that the
appraisal process was a two-way conversation between managers and their direct reports and is
reflected through the signing of the completed appraisal form by both parties. The task group also
felt the renewed push to promote the process this year was a positive step forward and the
regular reminders to managers helped to develop a consistent approach. A small number of
comments from the staff sample were received asking for a longer time period to complete
appraisals and this should be considered in future years.
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Page 13

January 2022

The survey results from the staff sample indicated that in the vast majority of cases (86.96%) the
objectives set with managers were felt to be at an appropriate level. Members of the task group
commented on the clear link between the objectives set to a number of key Council documents,
such as the strategic priorities in the Council Plan 2020-2024, the relevant team/service
objectives and a personal objective that can be linked to the job role, personal development or
values and behaviours. The setting of objectives in a SMART (Specific, Measurable, Achievable,
Relevant and Time-based) way was seen as a well-established method to help give a structure to
this part of the appraisal meeting.
The task group were reassured that the appraisal feedback was collected electronically on a
written proforma so that it could be referred back to at a later date as part of the monthly 1-2-1s
or other conversations between managers and their direct reports. It was important that any
training needs identified during the appraisal process were fed up to senior managers to help
nurture and develop the strengths and talents of all employees and to revisit these at future
personal development conversations.
The task group also noted the wider staff engagement undertaken to seek the views from staff,
such as the staff surveys and wellbeing activities taking place, with evidence of good levels of
engagement across these. The introduction of a Manager’s Forum was also seen as a positive
step forward for line managers to discuss corporate issues and feed back ideas and comments
on future initiatives to senior management.
Overall, the task group were impressed with the very high percentage of completed appraisals
this year, particularly with the Local Government Reorganisation process underway and the need
to support staff as much as possible during this period. The importance of having an appraisal
process cannot be underestimated within an organisation, as a key tool for all staff to have open
conversations to support performance improvement, identify any areas for further training and to
raise any issues or concerns. The process and procedures that have been put in place for staff
appraisals at Ryedale District Council provide a great platform for the organisation to improve this
further and to ensure all employees get the maximum possible benefit from their staff
development discussions.

6. Recommendations:
As a result of the scrutiny review, the task group put forward the following recommendations:


Reaffirm the importance of staff appraisals as a key tool for Ryedale District Council to
ensure all employees get the maximum possible benefit from their staff development
discussions, particularly during the Local Government Reorganisation process.



That the set period in the year to undertake appraisals should be continued in future years
to make it part of the routine for staff and managers to complete these as part of a
corporate calendar.



Officers should consider giving a longer period for the annual appraisals to occur, to give
enough time for both managers and staff to effectively plan, undertake and write up the
notes from the appraisal meeting.



Mid-year reviews and catch ups should be encouraged for managers to undertake with
staff in March and April to continue the cycle of performance and objective evaluation and
to help ensure that service priorities continue to be met with Local Government
Reorganisation.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Page 14

January 2022



The escalation process for any issues raised through appraisals should be promoted as
part of next set of mid-year/annual appraisals through the staff intranet website and
employee communications, to ensure greater awareness and understanding of the
options available.



An overall percentage of staff appraisal completions be included as a key performance
indicator (KPI) in the Ryedale District Council Annual Report to Elected Members to allow
continued tracking.



Appraisals for Elected Members on a similar basis to the staff process should be
considered by officers as part of the implementation of the member development
arrangements for the new unitary authority.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Page 15

January 2022

Annex A

Terms of Reference - Scrutiny Task Group: Staff Appraisals
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Scoping Report
The question that the scrutiny review is
trying to answer

Key points that the review would like to
cover

Indicators & Measures

Improvements
Other information

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

How is the appraisal process contributing to
effective performance across the
organisation and can it be refined?


What is the strategic impact of
appraisals, in terms of supporting
the delivery of the Council’s
priorities and performance
management?
 What appraisal system is in
operation?
 Is it appropriate and proportionate to
the organisation and its current
context?
 What evidence is there that
appraisals are having a positive
impact on performance?
 What developments may be
required to ensure that staff have
clear guidance on priorities and that
performance is measured and
addressed if necessary?
 What other forms of staff liaison with
team leaders and managers is
taking place across the council
outside of the formal appraisal
process e.g. team meetings, 1-2-1s,
wellbeing groups?
 Evidence of appraisal activity across
all functions.
 Evidence of appraisal impacting
performance.
 Evidence of staff engagement with
wellbeing activities and support
groups.
To be determined from the review.
 Officer workload awareness.
 This topic is linked to the ongoing
review of the Council’s Performance
Framework

Page 16

January 2022

Agenda Item 6

PART A:

MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

10 FEBRUARY 2022

REPORT OF THE:

PROGRAMME DIRECTOR PEOPLE AND RESOURCES
MARGARET WALLACE

TITLE OF REPORT:

CUSTOMER COMPLAINTS AND COMPLIMENTS Q3 2021/22

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To provide an update on the customer complaints and compliments received in
2021/22 to the end of the quarter 3 reporting period on 31st December 2021.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended to:
(i)

Note and endorse the continued good performance of complaints and
compliments received in the third quarter of 2021/22 of the reporting cycle.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To monitor the numbers of complaints and compliments received, the topics of
complaints and recommend service improvements in line with data analysis to provide
customer excellence.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

Potential reputational damage from upheld decision notices following investigation by
the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman into customer complaints.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

Our Organisation, an Innovative, Enterprising Council- Accessible to all.
We will transform our customer services, using new ways of working to improve our
responsiveness. We will support those who are digitally excluded or need support to

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 17

10 FEBRUARY 2022

access online services. We will bring partners into Ryedale House and provide options
for a “one-stop” Public Services Hub. We will tackle inequality. Delivering better
equality across the district is central to everything we do, and we are committed to
doing all we can to be a welcoming and inclusive place characterised by diversity. We
will improve our engagement with you, asking for your views, and using your feedback
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

The customer complaints and compliments received form an important part of the
feedback process for the Council to learn from any issues raised and improve how we
deliver our services, to provide a better standard of service that is more responsive to
people’s needs. When analysing the customer complaints and compliments, they
should be read in conjunction with each other to gain a full picture of the feedback
received.

COMPLAINTS
6.2

A complaint is defined within the Council as “an expression of dissatisfaction about our
action or lack of action, or about the standard of service provided by us or on our
behalf”.

6.3

The Council operates a 2 stage complaints procedure to respond to the issues raised
by complainants. At stage 1 we will acknowledge the submission of the complaint
within 1 working day, details of the named officer dealing with the complaint and
outlining the timescales for response. At stage 1 it is hoped that we have frontline
resolution within ten working days. However, if the issue is complex and we cannot
resolve within the 10 working days, we will contact the complaint or their representative
to explain the reason for an extension.

6.4

If the complainant is not satisfied with the response, they receive about their stage 1
complaint, then they can request a stage 2 investigation. We will acknowledge the
submission of their stage 2 complaint within one working day. Stage 2 deals with two
types of complaints: Those that have not been resolved at stage 1 and those that are
complex and require detailed investigation. Stage 2 complaints will be investigated by
a senior manager. After this investigation, the senior manager will provide a full
response to the complainant as soon as possible, and within 20 working days.

6.5

If the complainant is not satisfied with the stage 2 response, there is the option for the
complainant to escalate to the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman if they
remain dissatisfied. The Ombudsman is a free and impartial service but will generally
only consider complaints that have been through the internal 2 stage process at the
Council first.

6.6

Since the Quarter 2 update in November 2021, the council has responded to a further
seven complaints in the period between 1 October and 31 December 2021. The total
number of corporate complaints the council has handled so far this reporting year is
25.
During the third quarter, six complaints (86%) were handled under Stage
complaints procedure with one complainant (14%) remaining dissatisfied
Stage 1 outcome and advancing on to stage 2 of the corporate complaints
The Stage 2 Complaint was still ongoing at the point of the Q3 data being

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 18

1 of our
with the
process.
collated.

10 FEBRUARY 2022

Please note that this stage 2 complaint is now closed with the complainant receiving a
response in January 2022, in advance of its due date in February.
The quarter 3 data continues the trend of a low number of complaints compared to
previous years, showing the benefit of the changes implemented within the Complaints
Handling team and the improvement achieved so far in the ongoing review of the
administration process.
6.7

With the agreement of the complainants, two complaints received in Quarter 3 required
the stage 1 handling timescales to be extended beyond the standard 10 days due to
its complexity and need for further information to be received from the person
concerned. All of the other complaints were answered within the procedural timescales
set out in our Corporate Complaints Procedure.
To summarise, 100% of all complaints reported in Q3 received a response within the
agreed timescales A detailed analysis of the breakdown of complaint topics,
timescales and outcomes are attached (Appendix 1)

6.8

The analysis of the complaints received highlights that the majority of complaints
received within Quarter 3 were not upheld as council procedures had been followed.
However, complaints are an important part of the feedback process for the Council to
learn from any issues raised and improve how we deliver our services, to provide a
better standard of service that is more responsive to people’s needs.

6.9

The analysis also highlights some areas where we have failed to provide customer
excellence and where this has happened, for example we have apologised and made
service improvements to address the areas of concern raised. The complaint analysis
shows a trend beginning to form in the service area categories when looking at the
overall complaints for 2021-22, with further complaints received in quarter 3 relating to
car parking and planning issues.

6.10

The learning and actions resulting from complaints are an important element of the
customer feedback reporting and improving services. Understanding the causes of the
complaints and common themes inform learning and the identification of actions to
address the underlying causes of the complaint being made. To ensure we continue to
improve our services; customer service complaints officers will continue to work with
the service to ensure high quality of response to complaints received. The officers will
work with services to ensure timescales for complaints are met. They will also work
with service departments to achieve service improvements to mitigate further
complaints implementing a new service improvement plan from Quarter 3.

COMPLIMENTS
6.11

When analysing the customer complaints, it is important that this is done in conjunction
with our compliments received to provide a full picture of our customer feedback. The
number of service compliments recorded in the 2021/22 Quarter 3 period from 1st
October to 31st December 2021 is 28, giving a total of 68 compliments received during
the reporting year to date.

6.12

Examples of some of the compliments from October to December 2021 include:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 19

10 FEBRUARY 2022

Thank you once again for dealing with my complaint and replacing the lights. I truly hope
that there will not be any further similar incidents, because for the most part, the crews do
a good job. Sincere thanks and appreciation.
I just wanted to send a note of thanks for all your assistance in enabling the above
request to be dealt with in such and effective manner.
It was a pleasure to deal with you and your assistance was invaluable.
I was struggling to put my garden waste bin out early yesterday morning because it was so
heavy, and I was helped by a member of the refuse collection team. The member of staff
could not have been more helpful and courteous.
Following on from my telephone conversation with your department (sorry, I didn't catch
your name), I would like to thank you for your patience and kindness.
Thank you so much for the incredibly swift organisation of the exemption. I am so
impressed.
Many thanks for your amazingly swift response! Boxes were delivered virtually immediately!
Many thanks to you and to all concerned!

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
Costs are contained within the agreed budgets for the service.
b)

Legal
No complaints required to be escalated to Legal services for advice in quarter 1,
2 or 3.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
There are no direct equality implication identified, all complaints are handled on a
case by case basis taking into account individual’s circumstances and details of
events whilst liaising with complainants when required to fully understand the
matter in depth to ensure the matter is fully addressed and resolved.

Margaret Wallace
Programme Director People and Resources

Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Steph Medcalf, Customer Services Project Officer
01653 600666 ext: 43453
steph.medcalf@ryedale.gov.uk

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 20

10 FEBRUARY 2022

Background Papers:
Q1 committee update – Thursday 30 September 2021
Q2 committee update – Tuesday 16 November 2021

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 21

10 FEBRUARY 2022

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 1

Quarter Three Corporate Complaints and
Compliments Report

Author
Version
Status
Date

Jade Hutchinson
5
Final
25/01/2022

Page 23

1

The report below provides an overview of the corporate complaints and compliments received in
quarter three from 1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021. Within this period 7 complaints were
received and 28 compliments.
The report is separated into two sections; an overview of the complaints received during this time
period, and timescale for response, followed by an overview of the complaint’s issues raised by
complainants and a summary of complaints received for Quarter three. Followed by an overview of
the compliments received during this time period, and compliments by department, followed by an
overview of the compliment topic and a summary of compliments received for Quarter three.

OVERVIEW OF ALL COMPLAINTS
Throughout the period of 1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021, 7 corporate complaints were
recorded, this is an increase of 3 complaints from quarter two. Quarter three equates to 28% of all
complaints for 2021/22 so far.
Total Complaints
Complaints Received By Month
4

Number Of Complaints

3
3

2

2

Nov-21

Dec-21

2

1

0
Oct-21

Page 24

2

Complaint Stages
In quarter three, six out of the seven complaints received have been dealt with under the Stage 1
process, this equates to 86% of all Q3 complaints. One Q3 complaint progressed to Stage 2.
Please note the month that the complaint is logged in is based on the date it was received at Stage 1,
it is not be the month that the complaint was progressed to stage 2.
Complaint Stage
(Total Quarter
Figure)

Stages Of Complaints
2.5

Number Of Complaints

2

2

Stage One (6)

2

2
Stage Two (1)

1.5
1

Complaint
escalated to
Ombudsman (0)

1

0.5
0
Oct-21

Nov-21

Dec-21

Timescales
Stage 1 Complaint Timescales
Within the period of October 2021 – December 2021, three stage 1 complaints received an
extension to the stage 1, 10 day timescale. One extension was due to the complexity of the case,
another extension was due to unavailability of key responders to aid with the enquiry and further
investigation was needed to produce the complaint response. The final complaint was extended
because further information was required from the complainant. In total 100% of Stage 1 complaints
met their agreed timescale.

Stage One Complaint Timescale

Timescale
(Total Quarter
Figure)

4

Timescale
Met (4)

Number Of Complaints

3

3

Overdue
2

2
1

Extension
Timescale
Met (3)

1

1

Ongoing
Complaint

0
Oct-21

Nov-21

Page 25

Dec-21

3

Stage Two Complaint Timescales
Within the period of October 2021 – December 2021, one Stage 2 complaint was submitted, this was
ongoing at the time of reporting, thus the figures will change on the graph below in the next report.
The month in the graphs below are for when notification was received from the complainant and the
formal complaint was opened.
Please note this complaint was closed early in Q4 and within the timescale agreed with the
complainant
Stage Two Complaint Timescale
2

Timescale
(Total Quarter
Figure)

Number Of Complaints

Timescale Met
Overdue
Extension
Timescale Met
Ongoing
Complaint (1)

1
1

0
Oct-21

Nov-21

Page 26

Dec-21

4

Overview of Topic of Complaints
Below is a graph which breaks down the complaints into categories, based upon the topic of the
complaint and the quarter the complaint was received in. The graph underneath this shows the
complaint type by month.
Complaints By Type
Number Of Complaints

4
Q3

3
2
3
1

2
1

1

0

Complaints By Type

Staff Complaint
Council Tax Bill
Repeated request for bins

4

Number Of Complaints

Toilets
Exceptional Hardship Fund

3

Business Rates
Failure Notice

1

Delay / no response

2

Not received a letter

1

1

1

1

Planning pre application
Planning application

1

1

1

Covid
Car Parks - Parking

0
Oct-21

Nov-21

Dec-21

Subject Access Request
Noise Pollution

Page 27

5

COMPLAINTS OVERVIEW
The table below provides and overview of the topics of the complaints received, timescales met in
accordance with our complaint’s procedure, outcomes, and service improvements.
Quarter Three
Date

Title Of Complaint

Stage Title

Outcomes

04/10/2021

Long Stay Car Park
Pay Machine

Stage 1

13/10/2021

Enforcement
Complaint

Stage 2

25/10/2021

Community Team

Stage 1

04/11/2021

Development control
handling

Stage 1

26/11/2021

Parking issue

Stage 1

06/12/2021

Car Park issue

Stage 1

13/12/2021

Planning Application
Conditions -

Stage 1

Stage 1 complaint timescale metinvestigation identified procedures
followed.
Stage 1 complaint timescale metinvestigation identified procedures
followed. Stage 2 complaint received and
ongoing.
Stage 1 Complaint timescale metinvestigation showed all procedures
followed. The complainant was offered a
new appointment for equipment to be
installed.
Stage 1 complaint granted an extension
as key responders were unavailable to aid
with the enquiry to form the complaint
response and further investigation was
needed, the response timescale was met.
Stage 1 complaint timescale metinvestigation identified procedures
followed, customer feedback will be fed
into parking strategy.
Stage 1 complaint granted an extension
as further information is required from
the complainant, this timescale was met.
Following the customer feedback, a
surveyor will be sent to ensure
improvements can be identified and
implemented.
Stage 1 complaint granted an extension
due to the complexity of the case, this
timescale was met - investigation
identified procedures followed

Date

Title Of Complaint

Stage Title

Outcomes

21/06/2021

Complaint regarding
repayment of grants

Stage 2

12/08/2021

State of public
conveniences

Stage 1

Stage 1 complaint request for an
extension in timescale to respond due to
the complexity of the complaint.
Extension timescale met and response
given - investigation showed all
procedures had been met. Stage 2
complaint timescale met, investigation
showed all procedures had been met.
Stage 1 complaint timescale metinvestigation identified that a programme

Quarter Two

Page 28

6

of Improvement works are being
undertaken with all public toilets in
Ryedale and due to be finished later in
the year, the complainant was updated.
Stage 1 Complaint timescale metinvestigation showed all procedures
followed. The service did provide an
amended bill to the complainant.
Following feedback, the service has
emailed all staff in the department with
the procedures to prevent the error from
occurring again.
Stage 1 Complaint timescale metinvestigation showed all procedures
followed. The complainant was visited
and issues with the collection service
were resolved. Refresher training was
delivered to all collection crews.

16/09/2021

Council Tax Bill
2021/22

Stage 1

30/09/2021

Issue around waste
and recycling
collection’

Stage 1

Date

Title Of Complaint

Stage Title

Outcomes

01/04/2021

Failure Notice

Stage 2

08/04/2021

Repeated requests
for new refuse bins

Stage 1

13/04/2021

Business Rates

Stage 1

Stage 2 complaint timescale metinvestigation showed all procedures had
been met.
Stage 1 complaint timescale met investigation showed a delay had
occurred and an apology given. Service
improvements being implemented.
Stage 1 complaint timescale metinvestigation showed all procedures had
been met.

26/04/2021

Noise Pollution-

Stage 2

04/05/2021

Contact with the
Council on preapplication advice
Council Tax
Complaint Exceptional Hardship
Fund

Stage 1

05/05/2021

Claim from Covid
Fund, Charity or
Grant

Stage 1

05/05/2021

Planning Application

Stage 1

Quarter One

04/05/2021

Stage 1

Page 29

Stage 2 timescales met- investigation
undertaken, full response provided, all
procedures followed.
Stage 1 timescale missed by one day.
Investigation showed that all procedures
had been followed.
Stage 1 Complaint timescale metinvestigation showed all procedures
followed. The service did provide further
assistance to the complainant. Following
feedback, the service is providing a more
holistic approach to applications.
Stage 1 timescale met- investigation
confirmed service procedures were
followed. Following the feedback, the
Service added further information
regarding the fund on RDC website.
Stage 1 timescale met- investigation
showed all procedures were followed and
service timescales met.

7

20/05/2021

non receipt of
neighbour letter

Stage 1

07/06/2021

Delay in resolving an
enforcement issue

Stage 1

14/06/2021

Ignored planning
issues

Stage 1

14/06/2021

Ropery Toilets at
Pickering

Stage 1

24/06/2021

Subject Access
Request-

Stage 1

28/06/2021

Motorcycle Parking –
Helmsley

Stage 1

Stage 1 timescale met- investigation
showed all procedures were followed and
letters sent.
Stage 1 timescale met- investigation
showed that there had been a delay,
apology given to complainant. Service
had been in the process of recruiting a
new enforcement officer. Action taken
upon appointment.
Stage 1 complaint request for an
extension in timescale to respond due to
the complexity of the complaint.
Extension timescale met and response
given with follow up actions agreed with
complainant.
Stage 1 complaint timescale metinvestigation identified that a programme
of Improvement works are being
undertaken with all public toilets in
Ryedale and due to be finished later in
the year, the complainant was updated.
Stage 1 complaint timescale metInvestigation identified complaint upheld
and an apology given to complainant.
Service improvement to update subject
access procedures.
Stage 1 complaint timescale metinvestigation identified procedures
followed, customer feedback will be fed
into parking strategy.

OVERVIEW OF ALL COMPLIMENTS
Throughout the period of 1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021, 28 compliments were recorded, this
equates to 41% of all compliments for 2021/22 so far.
Total Compliments
Compliments By Month
19

20

Number Of Compliments

18
16
14
12
10
8

6

6
4

3

2
0
Oct-21

Nov-21

Page 30

Dec-21

8

Compliments By Department
Within quarter three, the 28 compliments were received for 5 departments. December 2021
equated to 68% of this quarter’s compliments received.
Compliments By Department
10

9

Number Of Compliments

9

8

8
7
6
5

5
4

4
3

2

2
1
0

Housing

Streetscene

Planning and
Regulatory
Services

Revenues and
Benefits

Ryecare

Number Of Compliments

Monthly Compliments By Department
10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1
0

3
7

Dec-21
Nov-21

3
3
1
Housing

Oct-21

5
2
Streetscene

1

1

1

1

Planning and
Regulatory
Services

Page 31

Revenues and
Benefits

Ryecare

9

Overview of Topic of Compliments
Below is a graph which breaks down the compliments into categories, based upon the topic of the
compliment. The graph underneath this shows the compliment type by month.
Compliments By Type
14
12

Number Of Compliments

12
10
8

7
6

6
4
2
2

1

0
Thank Staff

Joint Working

Quick Response / Resolve an Issue /
Amendments
Complaint

Customer
Feedback

Monthly Compliments By Type

Number Of Compliments

14
Dec-21

12

Nov-21

10
8

Oct-21

7

6
4

6

3

5

2
2
0
Thank Staff

1

1

Joint Working

2

Quick Response / Resolve an Issue /
Amendments
Complaint

Page 32

1
Customer
Feedback

10

COMPLIMENTS OVERVIEW
The table below provides and overview of the topics of the compliments received, date and
department.
Quarter Three
Date

Department

05/10/2021

Planning and
Regulatory Services

11/10/2021

Streetscene

18/10/2021

Streetscene

02/11/2021

Title Of
Compliment

Compliment Type & Description

Development
Management
21/01084/house
Pickering Bring or
Take event thank you
Malton Give or Take
event thank you

Customer Feedback - Customer
Satisfaction Survey

Streetscene

Blocked Drains
Streetscene

02/11/2021

Streetscene

04/11/2021

Planning and
Regulatory Services

Resolved complaint
Customer Services
and Streetscene
Requested
amendment granted

12/11/2021

Housing

Housing

12/11/2021

Ryecare

Thanks to staff

15/11/2021

Streetscene

Thanks to the
Streetscene lads

09/12/2021

Planning -AMEND

09/12/2021

Planning and
Regulatory Services
Planning and
Regulatory Services
Planning and
Regulatory Services
Planning and
Regulatory Services
Planning and
Regulatory Services
Revenues

Resolve an Issue / Complaint –
compliment regarding prompt attention
and assistance in finding a resolution to
their email.
Resolve an Issue / Complaint –
compliment regarding prompt
replacement of solar lights.
Quick Response / Amendments –
compliment regarding the response to a
request which enabled the request to be
dealt with in an effective manner.
Thank Staff – thanking 2 housing staff for
their help.
Thank Staff – thanking an operative for
calling an ambulance.
Thank Staff - thanking operatives for
helping them with their heavy garden
waste bin.
Customer Feedback - Customer
Satisfaction Survey
Customer Feedback - Customer
Satisfaction Survey
Customer Feedback - Customer
Satisfaction Survey
Customer Feedback - Customer
Satisfaction Survey
Customer Feedback - Customer
Satisfaction Survey
Quick Response / Amendments

09/12/2021

Ryecare

Ryecare

10/12/2021

Streetscene

Streetscene

10/12/2021

Streetscene

Streetscene

14/12/2021

Housing

Joint working

09/12/2021
09/12/2021
09/12/2021
09/12/2021

Planning
Planning
Planning
Planning
Revenues-

Page 33

Thank Staff – thanked staff for their help
tidying up the event.
Thank Staff – thanked staff for their help
tidying up the event.

Thank Staff – Thank staff for their efforts
over the weekend aiding with queries.
Thank Staff – Thank 2 staff who cleared
up leaves outside their property
Thank Staff – thank the team for taking
their bin when they forgot to take it out.
Joint Working – Compliment regarding a
staff member who explained the hub well
and aiding another hub.

11

16/12/2021

Housing

Housing team

16/12/2021

Revenues

Ryedale Revenues

16/12/2021

Revenues

Ryedale Revenues

16/12/2021

Revenues

Ryedale Revenues

21/12/2021

Housing

HOUSING

21/12/2021

Planning -

21/12/2021

Planning and
Regulatory Services
Planning and
Regulatory Services
Revenues

24/12/2021

Streetscene

Waste equipment
delivery

21/12/2021

Planning COUNCIL TAX

Page 34

Thank Staff – thank a member of the
team for their kindness over the phone.
Quick Response / Amendments –
compliment regarding agreeing to a
payment request relieving a worry for the
resident.
Quick Response / Amendments compliment regarding a name change
and help with exemption, staff made it so
easy.
Quick Response / Amendments –
compliment regarding a quick and
thorough reply.
Thank Staff – Thanking 2 staff for their
help with them over the past year.
Thank Staff – thanking a staff member for
their help and presentation
Thank Staff – thanking a staff member for
their help and the outcome achieved.
Quick Response / Amendments compliment regarding a staff members
swift organisation to apply an exemption.
Quick Response / Amendments –
compliment regarding swift response and
delivery of equipment immediately.

12

Agenda Item 7

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE:

17 MARCH 2022

REPORT OF THE:

PROGRAMME DIRECTOR FOR PLACE AND RESOURCES
PHILLIP SPURR

TITLE OF REPORT:

TIMETABLE OF MEETINGS 2022-2023

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

FOR INFORMATION TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
10 FEBRUARY 2022
PLANNING COMMITTEE
15 MARCH 2022

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

This report presents the draft timetable of meetings for 2022-2023 for approval.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

That Council is recommended to approve the timetable of meetings, attached as Annex
A to this report, as a basis for working in 2022-23.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1

To provide a timetable for all decision making, advisory and overview and scrutiny
meetings for use by Members, officers, the public and other interested parties.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There are no significant risks relating to this recommendation.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

A timetable of meetings is agreed and published for each municipal year. This is an
essential part of making the Council’s decision making process open and accessible
to all interested parties. The timetable of meetings is a working document as additional
meetings can be scheduled, under the Rules of Procedure in the Council’s
Constitution, if and when required to deal with business that has arisen. The legal
requirement to publish a public notice of meeting supports transparency and
accessibility for any additional meetings.

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 35

17 MARCH 2022

5.2

Strategic Management Board have been consulted on the draft timetable of meetings
for 2022-2023.

REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

The draft timetable of meetings, attached as Annex A of the report, has been based
on the meeting cycle used in 2021-22.

6.2

The timetable concludes at the end of March 2023 as the vesting date for the new
unitary council will be 1 April 2023. Should any changes to the timetable be required
as a result of a need to make decisions associated with the move to the new unitary
council, such changes would be made in consultation with the chair of the relevant
committee and with all group leaders.

6.3

Mondays have been kept free of meetings as this is when the majority of parish and
town councils meet.

6.4

Members have the option to approve, amend or reject the draft timetable of meetings
attached at Annex A. If the current draft timetable is not acceptable to Members, an
alternative will need to be agreed.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
The costs of meetings within the Council are built into existing budgets.
b)

Legal
None.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
An equality impact assessment on the timings of meetings was carried out five
years ago when start times to meetings were reviewed. As no changes are
proposed to the number of meetings, the climate change impact will be unchanged
from previous years.

8.0

NEXT STEPS

8.1

Once the timetable of meetings has been approved it will be published on the Council’s
website using the Modern.gov committee management system.

Phillip Spurr
Programme Director for Place and Resources

Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

01653 600666 ext: 43348
phillip.spurr@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
None.

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 36

17 MARCH 2022

ANNEX A

TIMETABLE OF MEETINGS MAY 2022 TO MAY 2023

COMMITTEE
Council

MAY
2022
19*

JUN

JULY

AUG

7

Page 37

Policy & Resources

16

Overview & Scrutiny
(Including Audit)

23

Planning Committee and
Licensing Committee

8
(Wed)

Member Briefing (virtual)

9

25

5

All meetings start at 6.30pm unless otherwise indicated.

2&
31
(Wed)
18

SEPT

OCT

15

20

29
1&
28
(Wed)
27

22

NOV

DEC

JAN
2023

1
10

27

24

25

22

3

20

FEB

MAR

Day

23

30

Thurs

9

Thurs

19

16

Thurs

17

14

2

14

Tues
(6pm)
Thurs

ANNEX A
NOTES
* Annual Council (start time 6.30pm)
** Member Development dates may be subject to change following discussions with the Member Development Task Group

Working Parties and Sub-Committees will meet as business requires
Scheduled Elections
Local Government Election - Thursday 5 May 2022
Bank Holidays

Page 38

Spring Bank Holiday
Platinum Jubilee Bank Holiday
Late Summer Bank Holiday
Christmas Bank Holiday
New Year’s Day Holiday
Council Offices closed
Easter
May Day

-

Thursday 2 June 2022
Friday 3 June 2022
Monday 29 August 2022
Monday 26 & Tuesday 27 December 2022
Monday 2 January 2023
Saturday 24 December 2022 to Monday 2 January 2023 inclusive
Friday 7 April and Monday 10 April 2023
Monday 1 May 2023

RDC Forward Plan
Date of Meeting

Committee

A/B

Service Area

Report Title

Draft
Deadline

Final
Deadline

Draft
Press
Release

Implement
Date

Full
Council

Reporting
Officer

Annual
Y/N

March
24-Mar-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Human Resources
and Organisational
Development

Delivering the Council Plan Key Performance Indicators for
O&S Review (if required)

02-Mar-22

15-Mar-22

LB

Y

24-Mar-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Financial Services

CIPFA Financial Management
Code

02-Mar-22

15-Mar-22

AH

Y

24-Mar-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Corporate
Governance

Risk Management Update

02-Mar-22

15-Mar-22

PS

Y

21-Apr-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Corporate
Governance

Standards Complaints Overview
and Annual Report

30-Mar-22

12-Apr-22

PS

Y

21-Apr-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

People and
Resources

Progress on the Equalities
Action Plan

30-Mar-22

12-Apr-22

MW

N

21-Apr-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

External Audit Plan

30-Mar-22

12-Apr-22

AH

Y

21-Apr-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

Third Internal Audit and Counter
Fraud Progress report

30-Mar-22

12-Apr-22

AH

Y

21-Apr-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

Internal Audit and Counter
Fraud Governance Plans
2022/23

30-Mar-22

12-Apr-22

AH

Y

21 Apr-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Customer Services

Safer Ryedale and Ryedale
Community Safety Partnership
Action Plan

30-Mar-22

12-Apr-22

BS

Y

April

Page 39

Agenda Item 9

1 of 1

This page is intentionally left blank

